
City of Kelowna
Public Hearing

AGENDA
 

Tuesday, August 25, 2015

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street
Pages

1. Call to Order

THE CHAIR WILL CALL THE HEARING TO ORDER:

1.     (a)    The purpose of this Hearing is to consider certain bylaws which, if adopted,
shall amend Kelowna 2030 - Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500 and Zoning
Bylaw No. 8000.

(b)   All persons who believe that their interest in property is affected by the proposed
bylaws shall be afforded a reasonable opportunity to be heard or to present written
submissions respecting matters contained in the bylaws that are the subject of this
hearing.  This Hearing is open to the public and all representations to Council form
part of the public record.  A live audio feed may be broadcast and recorded by
Castanet.

(c)   All information, correspondence, petitions or reports that have been received
concerning the subject bylaws have been made available to the public.  The
correspondence and petitions received after August 11, 2015 (date of notification) are
available for inspection during the course of this hearing and are located on the
information table in the foyer of the Council Chamber.

(d)   Council debate on the proposed bylaws is scheduled to take place during the
Regular Council meeting after the conclusion of this Hearing. It should be noted,
however, that for some items a final decision may not be able to be reached tonight.

(e)   It must be emphasized that Council will not receive any representation from the
applicant or members of the public after conclusion of this Public Hearing.

2. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the Hearing was publicized.

1



3. Individual Bylaw Submissions

3.1 1285 Graham Road, BL11126 (Z15-0029) - W-Ten Development Ltd. 4 - 23

To rezone the subject property in order to construct a semi-detached dwelling.

3.2 1457 Highway 33 East, BL11129 (Z15-0020) - Francesco Guarini 24 - 34

To consider rezoning the subject property to facilitate the development of a
second dwelling.

4. Termination

5. Procedure on each Bylaw Submission

(a)     Brief description of the application by City Staff (Land Use Management);

(b)     The Chair will request that the City Clerk indicate all information,
correspondence, petitions or reports received for the record.

(c)     The applicant is requested to make representation to Council regarding the
project and is encouraged to limit their presentation to 15 minutes.

(d)     The Chair will call for representation from the public in attendance as follows:

    (i)     The microphone at the public podium has been provided for any person(s)
wishing to make representation at the Hearing.

     (ii)     The Chair will recognize ONLY speakers at the podium.

     (iii)     Speakers are encouraged to limit their remarks to 5 minutes, however, if
they have additional information they may address Council again after all other
members of the public have been heard a first time.

(e)     Once the public has had an opportunity to comment, the applicant is given an
opportunity to respond to any questions raised.  The applicant is requested to keep
the response to a total of 10 minutes maximum.

(f)     Questions by staff by members of Council must be asked before the Public
Hearing is closed and not during debate of the bylaw at the Regular Meeting, unless
for clarification.

(g)     Final calls for respresentation (ask three times).  Unless Council directs that the
Public Hearing on the bylaw in question be held open, the Chair shall state to the
gallery that the Public Hearing on the Bylaw is closed.

Note:  Any applicant or member of the public may use visual aids (e.g. photographs,
sketches, slideshows, etc.) to assist in their presentation or questions.  The computer

2



and ELMO document camera at the public podium are available.  Please ask staff for
assistance prior to your item if required.

3



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: July 27, 2015 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Community Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (TY) 

Application: Z15-0029 Owner: 
W-Ten Development Ltd., 
Inc. No. BC0720702 

Address: 1285 Graham Road Applicant: 
Urban Options Planning & 
Permits 

Subject: Rezoning Application  

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single/Two Unit Residential  

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing  

Proposed Zone: RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing  

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Rezoning Application No. Z15-0029 to amend City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of Lot 78 Section 22 Township 26 ODYD Plan 19162, located at 
1285 Graham Road, Kelowna, BC from the RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone to the RU6 - Two 
Dwelling Housing zone, be approved by Council; 

AND THAT the Rezoning Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration; 

AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Rezoning Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of the Development Engineering Branch and Rutland Waterworks District completed 
to their satisfaction. 

2.0 Purpose  

To rezone the subject property in order to construct a semi-detached dwelling. 

3.0 Community Planning  

Community Planning supports the proposed rezoning on the subject property. The property is 
designated in Kelowna’s Official Community Plan as S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential which 
permits the RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing zone.   

  

4



Z15-0029 – Page 2 

 
 

 

The proposed design put forth by the applicant shows private open space in open lawn areas as 
well as covered balconies and patios. The applicant has worked with Staff to avoid a street 
frontage dominated by garage doors and hard surface driveway areas. Along the Graham Road 
frontage of the house, the two garage doors are offset from one another and the unit entrances 
are proposed with rooflines that are brought towards the street to draw the eye to the front 
doors. While these measures do assist in reducing the impact of the garage doors facing the 
street, the applicant has also incorporated landscaping between the two units that extends to 
the property line to help soften the front yard. 

The OCP seeks to allow two dwelling housing in this neighbourhood. The architectural style 
proposed by the applicant will complement and enhance the existing neighbouring streetscape 
and does not trigger any variances.  

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The subject property currently contains a 1970s single family dwelling with a suite. The applicant 
is seeking to demolish the existing house and construct a two unit semi-detached house.  

4.2 Project Description 

The architectural style of the proposed two storey house compliments the character of the 
neighbourhood and even enhances the current streetscape by incorporating varying setbacks from 
the front property line. Hardiplank composite siding brings a welcome improvement to the 
neighbourhood proposed in a colour that blends with other homes on the block. While the front 
door to each unit is recessed from the garages, the entry is accentuated with a roof line that is 
brought forward towards the street. The proposed massing and roofline of the entire house brings 
down the scale of the two storey home by stepping the second storey back from the front and 
side property lines. 

The driveway layout seeks to minimize the look of hard surface paving in the front yard by 
separating the two driveways and minimizing each width to 4.0 m at the property line. Between 
the two driveways landscaping is proposed to further soften the front streetscape. Although 
Kelowna’s OCP does speak to reducing driveways of two unit dwellings to a single driveway, a 
preliminary design put forth by the applicant showed minimal planting between the two garages 
and a vast amount of hard surface paving. The front yard landscaping as proposed will be vital to 
a successful streetscape of a house where the garage door takes up more than 50% of the street 
frontage.  

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the south side of Graham Road, between Thompson Road and 
Ace Road in the Rutland sector of Kelowna. The property is zoned RU1, identified in Kelowna’s 
OCP as S2RES, and is within the Permanent Growth Boundary. 

Adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU1 Single Family House 

East RU6 Duplex House 

South RU1 Single Family House with a suite 

West RU6 Duplex House 

5



Z15-0029 – Page 3 

 
 

 

Subject Property Map: 1285 Graham Road 

 

4.4 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU6 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Minimum Lot Area 700 m2 929 m2 

Minimum Lot Width  18.0 m 24.0 m 

Minimum Lot Depth  30.0 m 38.1 m 

Development Regulations 
Maximum Site Coverage 
(buildings) 

40% 38% 

Maximum Site Coverage 
(buildings, driveways and parking) 

50% 48% 

Maximum Height 9.5 m or 2.5 storeys 7.6 m / 2 storeys 

Minimum Front Yard 4.5 m to house 6.0 to garage 6.1 m to garage 

Minimum Side Yard (west) 
2.0 m up to 1.5 storey  
2.3 m up to 2.5 storeys 

2.0 m for 1st storey  
3.2 for 2nd storey 

Minimum Side Yard (east) 
2.0 m up to 1.5 storey  
2.3 m up to 2.5 storeys 

2.0 m for 1st storey  
3.2 for 2nd storey 

Minimum Rear Yard 7.5 m 12.0 m 

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking Requirements 4 stalls 6 stalls  

Minimum Private Open Space 30 m2  30 m2 

 

Springfield Rd 

Graham Rd 

6



Z15-0029 – Page 4 

 
 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Sensitive Infill2 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to be 
sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design, height 
and siting. 

Duplex Housing3 Design as separate units rather than a single large structure through 
architectural detailing and elements, offsetting units, variations in roof design, height and 
massing, and building articulation; 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permits. 

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. Please indicate how the requirements of Radon mitigation and NAFS are 
being applied to this structure. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached Memorandum dated June 26, 2015 

6.3 FortisBC Inc - Electric 

 There are primary distribution facilities along Graham Rd. The applicant is responsible for 
costs associated with any change to the subject property's existing service, if any, as well 
as the provision of appropriate land rights where required 

6.4 Rutland Waterworks District 

 See attached Summary of Requirements dated June 9, 2015 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  May 29, 2015  
Date Public Consultation Completed: June 16, 2015  
 
  

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter) 
3 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 3.2 (Development Permit Areas Chapter) 

7



Z15-0029 – Page 5 

 
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Tracey Yuzik, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Community Planning Department Manager 
 
 

Attachments:  

Site Plan 
Conceptual Site Plan 
Conceptual Elevations 
Conceptual Landscape Plan 
Context/Site Photos 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Irrigation District Summary of Requirements 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: August 10, 2015 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Community Planning Department (LB) 

Application: Z15-0020 Owner: Francesco Guarini 

Address: 1457 Highway 33 East Applicant: Francesco Guarini 

Subject: Rezoning Application  

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: A1 – Agriculture 1 

Proposed Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing  

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Rezoning Application No. Z15-0020 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of Lot 2, Section 13, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 23518 Except 
Plan KAP86904, located at 1457 Highway 33 East, Kelowna, BC from the A1 – Agriculture 1 zone to 
the RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing zone be considered by Council; 

AND THAT the Rezoning Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration; 

AND THAT final adoption of the Rezoning Bylaw be considered subsequent to the requirements of 
the Development Engineering Branch being completed to their satisfaction; 

AND THAT final adoption of the Rezoning Bylaw be considered subsequent to the requirements of 
the Black Mountain Irrigation District being completed to their satisfaction; 

AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Rezoning Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure being completed to their 
satisfaction. 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider rezoning the subject property to facilitate the development of a second dwelling. 

3.0 Community Planning  

Community Planning Staff supports the request to rezone the subject property from the A1 – 
Agriculture 1 zone to the RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing zone. The applicant intends to construct a 
second single detached house in the northwest portion of the property. The existing single 
detached house is to be retained, and its location accommodates the development of a second 

24



Z15-0020 – Page 2 

 
 

single detached house under provisions of the RU6 zone. The lot dimensions meet the 
requirements for two dwelling housing and the conceptual site plan provided by the applicant 
meets the requirements of the Zoning Bylaw. 

The property is within a small development of residential lots south of Highway 33 East that, 
although currently zoned A1, has a Future Land Use designation of S2RES – Single / Two Unit 
Residential in the Official Community Plan. The RU6 zone complies with the Future Land Use 
designation and would allow for some additional density on this large property. 

Pursuant to Section 52 of the Transportation Act, the Ministry of Transportation and 
Infrastructure has granted preliminary approval of the rezoning request subject to no direct 
access being provided to Highway 33. The conceptual site plan shows the existing driveway 
access along Traut Road being used for the second house and no new access is proposed. 

Should Council choose to support this rezoning application, the applicant will submit a 
Development Permit application to consider the form and character of the second dwelling. As 
per Schedule 3 of the City of Kelowna Development Application Procedures Bylaw No. 10540, the 
authority to approve and issue this Development Permit is delegated to the Community Planning 
Department Manager. Issuance of an approved Development Permit is required prior to issuance 
of any Building Permits for this development. 

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 respecting public consultation, the applicant undertook 
neighbour consultation by individually contacting neighbouring properties within 50 m. No major 
concerns were identified during this consultation. At the time of writing, Staff has not been 
contacted with any questions or concerns about the application. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the southeast corner of the intersection of Highway 33 East 
and Traut Road in the City’s Belgo – Black Mountain Sector. The property is designated S2RES – 
Single / Two Unit Residential in the Official Community Plan and is within the Permanent Growth 
Boundary. The surrounding area is characterized by single dwelling housing development and 
agricultural land. 

Adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU2 – Medium Lot Housing Single dwelling housing 

East A1 – Agriculture 1 Single dwelling housing 

South A1 – Agriculture 1 Single dwelling housing 

West A1 – Agriculture 1 Agriculture 

 

  

25



Z15-0020 – Page 3 

 
 

Subject Property Map: 1457 Highway 33 East 

 

4.2 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU6 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Minimum Lot Area 800 m2 1,225 m2 

Minimum Lot Width 20.0 m 33.8 m 

Minimum Lot Depth 30.0 m 44.6 m 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Complete Communities.1 Support the development of complete communities with a minimum 
intensity of approximately 35-40 people and / or jobs per hectare to support basic transit service 
– a bus every 30 minutes. 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 No comments. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached memorandum, dated May 15, 2015. 

6.3 Black Mountain Irrigation District 

 See attached letter, dated June 5, 2015. 

                                                           
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.4 (Development Process Chapter). 

26



Z15-0020 – Page 4 

 
 

6.4 Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure  

 Preliminary approval is granted for the rezoning for one year subject to the condition of 
no direct access to Highway 33. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  April 30, 2015  
Date Public Consultation Completed: July 10, 2015  
 
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Laura Bentley, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Community Planning Department Manager 
 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Black Mountain Irrigation District Letter 
Conceptual Site Plan 

27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34


	Agenda
	3.1 Graham Rd 1285 Report Z15-0029.pdf
	3.1 Graham Rd 1285 Attachments Z15-0029.pdf
	3.2 Hwy 33 E 1457 Report Z15-0020.pdf
	3.2 Highway 33 E 1457 Attachments Z15-0020.pdf

